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1 compared Witb the shares the employmmt oon.trnot entitled him to receive; nor.did

2 Defendant$ explain the reason for the creation ofHoldingli as a $\locessor entJty.

3 The employment contract p~ovides that Defendants were to issue an additional

4 600,000 shares ofQommon stock oflntemational to PlaiDtitrin two stages provided

5
ocrtaIn conditions were met, As a firstst., Defendants were ~quired to provide

6
.Plaintitl'witb an a.dditional 300,000 share~ ofoommon stock ofInter.national upon

7
8 achievement ora six-month period with consistent sales growth averaging20%p~,
9 month. That six-montb period was 10 beSin 60 day$ after the date ofthe employment

10 contract.

11 The Arbitrator finds tbat the required growth objective was achieved; that

12 Plaintiffrequested that the additional shares be prOVided in accordanoe with 1he
13

employment contract; an(1 that Defendants further breached that COJ1t1'Aet by failing and
14

refusing to provide thlll required 300,000 shares to Plaintiff.
15

16 . As a second stage, the emplQymentcontract provides that Defendant!! were to

17 provide Plaintiffwith a further 300,000 shares ofcotnmon stock ofIntemational upon

18 achievement ofa follow~on six-month period with eonsi&tent sales growth averaging 10%

19 pel;" month. The Arbi1rator finds that this further requited growth obje~vo was lohieved

20
as well; that Plaintiffrequested that the additional share$ be provided in accordanoe with

21
the employment OOntraoti and that Defendants further breached the employment oontrllQ't

22
23 by failing and refusing to provide the required additional 300,000 shares to Plaintiff,

24 dc~'pite Plaintiffs requests for those shares.

25

26

27
10
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1

2

Dfseussion and C,Ie.u.latfORI of!!em'.
Def¢ndants neverprovided Plaintitfwith the 1,700,000 shares f)flntematfonal to

S 1,700,000.00

3 which be was entitled. But they are c:leemed to havo admitted that those shares were

4 worth no less than 51.00 per share. See Plaintiff's Requosts for Admissions, RFA

S number 16; and the Order on Plaintiffs Motio1\ t6 Vaoate Plaintiff. I>isQOver:y
6

Deadlines, Motion to Compel Discovery Responses and Request for Sanetions dated
7
g February 1S. 2008. Thorefore, Defondants o~e Plaintiffnot less than SI.700,OOO as

9 damages for that breach:

10 Damages for faflot'e to issue shares =

11 C.I. Illtel'est On Value of Undelivered Stock

12 a. fuUJred on Initial 1.100,000 Shares. The initial 1,100,000 shares were due upon the
13

signing of the employment contract on June 18, 2004. Employment contract paragtaph
14

6.4. Thus, IS cfJune 30.2008. the $1.100,000.00 in d.amages'arising from the failure to
IS
16 issue those shares will haye been oweQ. for 4.033 yeatS. Tbettlfore.

17 Interest;:: $1 1100.000.00)£ lOo/oIyear X 4.033 years· $ 443,630.00

18 b. l~tert$t 00 Additionsl 3OG,OOO Shares, The next 300,000 shares were due On

19 February 18, 200S. eight mont.h$ ~eX' the commenoement ofemployment. Employment
~' ,

,oontract paragraph 6.6, Thus, as ofJune 30, 2008, the $300,000.00 in damages arisins
21

from the failure to issue those shares will have been OWl!r;t for 3.366 years. The~fore,
22
23 Interest:;; S300,OOO,OO'x lOo/cJyearx. 3.366 YI:lat1l = S 100,980.00

24 c. Jnter~t on Jrma1300,OOO Shares. The final 300.000 shates were due on August 18,

25 ~ ZOOS, fourteen months after the oommencement ofemployment. Employment contraot

I)

7
11 . dd
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1 puragraphs 6.6 and 6.7. Thus~ as otJune 30, 2008~ the $300.000.00 in damage$ arising

2 from the ~ure to issue those shares will have been owed for 2.866 year,. Therefore,

3 Xnterest ... $300.000.00 x iO%Iy~ x 2.866 years ==

4 d. D,dly Interest =S 1~700rOOO.OO x lO%/year x 1.yearl36S clays. Th*foro~
5

POlt-06300! Daily Interest· S~)7001000.00/3650=
6

7 D. Section 2802 Reimbunem.ntl Indemnification

S 465.7S1dal

8

9
The employment contract rcqulre$ Pefendants to reimburse Plaintiff for his

various expenses incurred in performing hisduties on Def~n6M.ts' behalf, mcludins but
10
11 notU~d to reimbursement for the oosts of lodging and transportation on 1rlps to .
Xl metropolitan Manila. The Arbitrator finds that Plaintlff'requestcd that reimbutsement

13repeatedly~ butDefendants breached1he employment contraet by failing to provIde the

14 required reimbut$ement ofPlaintlfrs expenses# whioh total approxhnately $3,542.«;7.

15 The employment contract further provides that, In the event ofterminatloD o£'Plalntiff
16

without c&use, be shall be entitled to 100% ofsny ongoing cost of lodging and
17

transportation in Manila., up to a maximum of$1.000 peT month. for" period up to one
18
19 year after tenntnatlon.· The Arbitrator find.! that none ofthat additional reimbursement

20 bas been paid by Defendants.

23 Plaintiffteaufied10 his conSQtVa.tlve estimate that he inOUITod $lQ;,OOO.OO ofongoing

21

22

.DiscQHion fWd C1kulatlON of DIUJlIi!i., .. ' "'. .... ..
Defendant owes $3,542.67 in expense reimbursements to Plaintiff. A,dditionallYt

i
~

!
·1

24
oosts of lodging and transportation jn Manila dwing the first Y'~. after his termination.

25
26 and the Arbitrator fmdstbat estimate reasonable gi~n Defendants· edmissions ana the

').1 absence oftellJtimany or doc1J1'l1ents to the oontrary. Thus, the Arbitrator finds that.

12
.AlUIlTM'iION AWABD
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1 pursuant to California. Labor Code section 2802, Plaintiffis entitled to re!mburscment of

2 .~ose expenses, totaling $13,S42.67, togetbet With interest and attomeys' fees.

3 Damase. for faJlure 10 reimburse expenses ­

4 D.l. Interest on tTnrelDlbnrsed Expenses

5 13,542.67

b. Intereston $10;000.00. The a.vorage date ofnonpayment o£the post-termination

914.23

the end oft>laintiff's employment, 2.75 years prior to June 30, 2008. Therefore.

Interest"" $ 3,542.67 x 1O%/ycar x 2.75 years "'"

S
a. Interest on $3.fi42.67. The $3,542.67 was owed no later than September 30, 2005

7

6

7

8

9

S '2,2S0.00

10 reimbursements ofexpenses of lodging and transportation in Manila fs the mid..polnt of

11 the one-year period foJlowingthe tenninatlon ofPlafutlff's employment, i.,., Maroh 31,

12 2006. That Is 2,25 years prior to June 30, 2.008. Therefore,
13

Inter6'lt ... $ 10,000,00x lOO/O/year x 2.25 years •

16 l'ost-063008 Daily lntenst· $13,542.67/3650­

17

=c
S 3.71/day.

The employment contract requires that all confidential izlfonnatiQn and materla,ls

E. ReturD of Plaintiff's Property
18

19

20 provided to Defendants by Plaintiffbe returned to Plaintiff. The Arbitrator finds that

21 Plaintiffdemanded orally and in writing that Defendants cease and c:ktsist :Erom direotly or

2~ indirectly utili2ing, storing or d~tributinS any otPlsbrtitrs materials inc1udjng~ without
23

limitation. all power-point }»'Bsentations, aU Ex.cel spreaQ.5he~ income Models foX' the
24

distribution foree, all broohures, falms, rec:oxdings, fIlms from meetins prosentations,
2S .
26 training materIals, copies ofthoso JXUlterla1a that were di5cributcd throughout the world,

27 wording su~." a$ PJ;ogressivo Compenl$atio~ ~lw'te oreated to show the l'e8i4ual

ARBtrRA~L AWA,BP
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1 Qomponaa.tion under Prosr&SSive CompensatlOl\ ideas. and partial wording ofthose

2 slogans u~li.zed today that were derive!! from ~laintifrs ~teriala. Additionally, the

:; Arbitrator fmds that Plaintiffdemanded orally and in writing that Defendanta announce to

4 III oftheir dlstrIbutors and employClCls wotld"Nidethat they are to cease using all sDoh

5 materials and to rotunl them to Plaintiffimmediately. 1b Arbitrtltor thex-oforo flnds that
6

Defendants have fUrther breac>hed the employment wntmot by CailinS and refUsing to
7
8 comply with Plaintiff's demands as described in tlUs paragraph,

9 Dj,cY,llpD and CaleoIavgDI ofD~m!g!l

10 The Arbitrator finds that Defendants were Obligated to return. all ofPlaintiff'I

11 property to him upon termination, h. t on September 30. 2005. PI~tifft.estif1ed to his

12 conservative estbttate that his property was worth 560,000;00 at that time, and the
13

Atbitrator fUlda that e$timate reasonable given Defertdanrs' admissions and the absence
14

oftestimoDY or documCt1ts to the contrary. The Arbitrator therefore finds that Defendan-m
15

16 owe Plaintiffnot less than $60,000.00 as damages for their faJlure or refusal to return his

17 property:

S 16,500.00

$ 60.000.00

14 I ,te

18 Damages for fallure to return property =
19 E.l. Interest on Da~ale.t toJ' lI'aUun to Return Property

20
a. Interest on 5'60,000.00. The $ 60,000,<10 was owed no later than SepM111ber 30,

21
2005, the end ofPlaintifrs emplo}'I1lentt 2.75 years prior to June 30,2008. Thercd'oro,

22
23 ID~rest - $ 60,000,00 If lOo/oIycarx 2.75 years'"

24 b. Dally Interest· $ 60,000,00 X1Oo/olycar X1 ycllt136S days. Therefore,

25 l'oltn0G3098 Dally laterest - $ 60,000.0013650 11II: $ 16.44/day
PM.

26

27

. !
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1 F. Labor Code Sectioll203 Wafting Penalty

2 The Arbitrator finds that Defendants tenninated Plaintiff's employment on

3 Se.ptember 29,2005; that Platntiffhad. a(;Croe~ unpaid WIles owed to him in the amounts

4 sot forth above at that time, Includi.ng all salary that should have been paid but wu not,

S
and all unpaid connnl$$loDI!i in amounts equal to fivo peroent ofgross sales on an ongoing

bast!l~ and that"tI1efiiilUl'Cl 'by Defendants, and lach of them, to pay those willes and
7
8 commissions 10 Plaintiffhas continued to the ptesflnt time.

9 The ·Arbitrator further findll that the failure of Defendants, and each of them, to

10 pay Plaintiff earned wages as alleged in the complaint was willful in that Plaintiff

1I ~fltedIymade both oral and written demands for payment ofhis eametl wages while he

12 was employed by Defendant, after tho date of his tenninatlon by Defendant. and
13

continuing up to tho date of the filing of the lawsuit. The Arbitrator therefore finds thlt
14

Plaintiff is entitled to "waiting penalties" under Labor Code Section 203, wbleh provides
15
16 that an employee1s wages sheIl oontlnue day by day, including wef;kends, until paid, up to

17 a maximum penalty of thirty days' pay. Beecl\lse more than thirty days have elapsed

18 since he WQS tenninated. Plaintiff is entitled to a penalty of'thirty (30) days' wages

19 pursuant to tabor Code Section ~03.

20

21

22

. .
nl!Fusslon and CalculatfoDs ofPenaltis

Plaintiff's fmal rate ofpay was as follows:

Salary ='l44.000.00/year:lt 1year/S2·weeks = $ 2,769,2)/week
23 Commia~lQn. $321.000,OO/year x 1year/52 weeks .. Sf 6,173.Q8lweek
24 Total S8~942.3l/week

2~ WaltJn2' Penalty = .30 daY$' pay • I) weeks x $ 8.942.311Mek •

26

27
15
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1 G. Labor Code Seetiot\ 224; Penalty

2 Plaintiff was employed from June 18t 2004, through S~.ptember 29, 2005. a total

3 of 15-112 months or 31 pay periods. California LabOr Codt section 226(a) reqWt.a that

4 the employer provide a written. itemi2ed statement ("pay siub") acoompanying a

5
paycheck ,and setting forth, among o1her things, the employee's gross wages and net

6

7
wages for the pay period. Labor COde·$.,ction 200 provides that "wages" inoltKW' ·Mt,

8 only salery but oommissions ss well. The Arbitrator finds that the figures on Plaintiff's

9 pay stubs did not include the commissions owed to him and thetef()~ failed. to provide

10 a~urate tigttteB for gross wases end net wages in 'Violation ofLabor Code seotlon 226(a).

11 The Arbitrator wds that Defendants' violations ofLabor Code section 226 were knowing

12 and intentional and that the penalties provided by Section 226(e) of the Labor Cod6~
13

owed to Plaintiff.
14

IS

16

DiScU"loD and C@,lculatiVDI otPenalties

Labor Code seQtion 2.26(e) provides 'that • employee who fCQoives pay stubs that

17 vIolate section 226(a) ;s entitled to $SO.OO for the first violation and $100.00 for each

18
subsequent vio~aticn. up to a. maximum ofS4.000,OO.

19

20
Pefendants' violftuon of Labor Co&:kl $~ctiQn 226(a) in eaoh of 31 pay periods

21 entitles Plaintlifto L,abor Code section 226 penalties computed as follows:

22 SectioD 226 P"lIalty • 1pay stub x $SO.OO/pay stub
+30 pay stubs x SlOO.OO/pay .$tub"

24 H. Punitive Damages

$ 3,050.00

The Afbitrator finds that conduct ofe"h of1h~~Defendants, including25

26 Defendants' conversion ofmonetary awns andproperty belonging to Plafntlffand

27
16



05/27/2009 20:02 FAX 916 933 5533

JAN.8.20091:16PM JAMS OC
BERNSTEIN FAX III 051!

- -NO. 14B6 -P, 17
i

•.

14

4

5

6
,'''>;~';\

7

8

9

1 . Defendants' obtainlng work and senrices frozn Pla,W,tift"without paying him, was wiUful,

2 wanton, maUcious, and oppressive. and wu despicab~eco~duetthat subjeoted Plail1tiff''t(l

3 a oru~l and unjust hardship in conscious disJ:egard ofPlaJntiff's rights. and that that

oonQu~twas engaged in by managerial employeas ofDefendants, so A8 toJustify an

awart.l ofexemplary andpunitive <1amaps In ~n amount appropriate to punish and make

(til ~~pleofDefendrmts. The Arbittator further notes that, Dotwithstandins tho fact

that they were requested and ordered to provide acoounting books and records tb~t would

have lent insight into theit tnlt financial condition, Defendants refused to I'rovide tboue

10 books and reoofde.

11 By virtue ofDe~n.dan.ts' admissions and the Ctther evidence in this; CftfJ\!I, Plaintiff

12 has establishod by olear and convinoing evidence that Defendants, and each of them,
13

ensaged 3n .. J)l!ttem ofdespicabl= conduct that oonstitutes oppression, fraud and rnaUO(l

within the meaning ofseotiof\ 3294 of the California Civil Code, so liS to JU$tify lU1 award
15
16 ofexemplqry and pun.11ive damages. The Al''bltl:ator1herefore aw81'ds punitive and

17 exeIJ11)16ry damag~5 to Pla.intiff, as aJoint And several obligation ofOefendants, in an

l8 1Ul10unt equal to three titne$ the damages awarded above, other than those amOlU11S

19 awarded for interest, penalties and attorneys' !ees and costs. TheNfOri,

20 lnnltlve Daro.aga .. 3 x $ 975,425.S58.09 =
21

L Attorneys' Fees and C()sts
22

$ ~26:J.7',674.2.7

Plaintiff'ls the prevailing party in thi& mattor and therefotQ is entitled to attomeya'23

24 fees pumlant to Labor Code §§ 218.5, 226, 1194 and 280'2., 68 well a 29 U.S.C. §21G.

~ The A.rbittatQ\' bas reviewed the lodestar: calculations for ~1aIntift" 8 attorney, ..,

.26 provided in tho declaratfons ofSco1 Bernstein a.t1d Steve A. BuohweJter, whichw~

27
17
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1 submitted at the h~ariD8. the Arbitrator finds ScotBernstein's biJIing rate of$550.00 per

2 hour to be reasonablo, and finds Steve A. Buohwa1~ s billing ra.te of5300.00 perhQW' to

3 be reasonable. Tho Arbitrator further finds th~t the 32S.0 hOurB expended on this case by

4 Mr. Bemstein through Juno 18.2008, and the 108.0 hours expended on this case by Mr.

S Buchwalter. to be reasonable. Thus, the Arbitrator IW determined that th~ lodestar
6

amounts of'$178,7S0.00 for Mr. Bernstein and 532,400.00 for Mr. BUQhwa}terllte

~ reasonable, as are the $1,054.5' !n cost advances by Mr. Bernstein,

.9 The Arbitrator recognl2'A:l$ that merely paying th~ lodestQ1" amount will not fully

I0 compensate Plaintiff's cauusel for their work.

11

12

13

14

CArt has long beta. recognized, however, that the contingent and defened Dature of
the fee award in civil rights or other We$ with statutoJY attorney' f~cs requires
that the fee bo acljusted in SOllIe manner to reflect the fact that the fair l1W'ket
value Qf'thc legal smri,:es provided on that basis is greater than the el1uivalent
nonQQntingent hourty rate, 'I

Horsfqrd v, Board cfImms (2005) 132 CalApp.4th 359.
15

16

17

18

19

'~A lawyer who both bears the fisk ofnot being paid and provides legal serviCfl$ is
not receiving the fair market "Value othie work ffhe is paid only for the second of
these functions. Ifhe is paid no more, competent counsel will be reluCUlnt to
aecept fee award cl1$es:'

Ketchum at 1133. quoting with approve.) from Loubedorf, the ContirJDOcy Fa.ctot

20 in Attomey Fee Awam~ (1981) 90 YalaL.I. 473. 480.

21

22

23

C'The purpose ota fee enhsncement~ or so-Called multiplier. for tlc;)ntingent risk is
to bring the financia1lnc~ntive8 for attorneys enforcin& importUlt eonrtitutionl1
rigbts~ such as those protected under the anti..SLAPP provi$~nJ into line with
inoentives they have to undertake <llahns for which th~ are PaId on a fee-for­
services basis!'

25

26

24
Ketchum at 1132.

..
.,The rIght ofemployees to their pay is amatter ofthe tlmdamental publio polley of

27 the State ofCalifornia and is wortJty ofthe same'kind ofprotection.

18
i

.\
I
!

I
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In detmDinins the appropriate muhipliQ" to a.ward in this CIIse. the Arbitrator has

litigation; th6 undtskabillty ofthe case; counsel's sklU in pft.paring and presentmg tbe

1
2 considered the contingent nature ofthe fee award; the no'Velty and oomplexity of the

3

4 case; and 'the results obtained, Based UpOt1 those factors, tho Arbitrator has determined

5 1hat a multiplier of3.0 shall be applied to the fees ofPlaintiffs' attomeys In this case.
6

1
~re,

8 Attorneys' Fees • 3.0 x ($178,750.00 +532,"00.00) =t

9

1,0 Summary ofAw~rd

11 Pla.intiff is awarded, and Defendants iFreedQm Com:m.unicatiolllllnoorporated. iFteedom

12 Communications International Holdings, Limited, and Timothy Rinaaenbel'g, jointly and

13
severally. shall pay to Plaintiffthe followin8 sums:

S .27S,425,558.0~

$ 1,420.011.82

$ S3,§53.J6

S 3&~O.OO

s a,926.1'16,614,27

S §A4SO.00

$ 1154.5$

S 1,210.00

S 5,S32,4~

PunitiveDamages (H)

Attorneys' Costs (1)

Sanctions Previously AwarrJed (parasraph 8, above)

JAMS FeesPaid by Plaintiff (paragraph 9, above)

Post-J'une 30. 2008,
Daily Interest (A.1.b. +B.I.b. "'" C.l.d. +D,1.c. +E.l.b.) S,__--=:z6&l7~J=39::.::.88=

Attorneysf Fees (1)

Compensatory Damages (A+B+C+n +E)

Interest On CompensatoryDamages
(A.l.a.. +B.l.a.. +C.l.a., b. & c. +0.1.&. & b. +£.1.a.)

Labor Cod" Section 203 Waiting Penalties (F)

La.bor Code Section 225 Penalties (G)

14

15

16

17

°J8

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27
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Simple intorcst shall accrue on all tWOu;nts set fOtth above atthe rate often

Defendants had twenty calendar days following the date ofservice oftbe Interim

1
2 percent (10%) per annl.lm eommenalng 011 the date ofserriee ofthis award.

3

&n. William F, McDoDald (Ret.)
Arbitrator

20

4 Arbitration Award herein to file and serve Plaintiffwith any objection. to the Interim

5 Arbitration Award. 'Ihey did not do so. ACODrdinglyt this Award is final.
6

1
8 Datod:,_......,~q..----,'--_

9

10

11

12

13

14

IS

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27




